
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, March 31, 2015

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor Hodge.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 6

Public Hearing - March 17, 2015
Regular Meeting - March 17, 2015

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 4360-4390 Gallaghers Dr. E, BL11066 (OCP14-0026) - GolfBC Holdings Inc. 7 - 8

Requires a majority of all Members of Council (5).
To give Bylaw No. 11066 second and third readings in order to change the
Future Land Use Designation of the subject property.

4.2 3528 Landie Road, BL11067 (Z14-0058) - Jesse East 9 - 9

To give Bylaw No. 11067 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property.

4.3 4962 Lakeshore Road, BL11068 (Z15-0001) - Shane Jones 10 - 10

To give Bylaw No. 11068 second and third readings in order to rezone the
subject property.

4.4 1890 Baron Road, BL11069 (LUC15-0001) - SD-39 Ventures Ltd. 11 - 12

To give Bylaw No. 11069 second and third readings in order to discharge a
portion of Land Use Contract No. 76-1114.



5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

6.1 403 Eldorado Road, DVP15-0010 - Michael & Laurie Koss 13 - 21

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To seek a Development Variance Permit to reduce the flanking side yard
setback.

6.2 1290 St. Paul Street, DVP15-0029 - Sole on St. Paul Developments Ltd. 22 - 32

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To seek a Development Variance Permit for fascia signs on a new building.

6.3 3785 Casorso Road, DVP15-0040 - The BC SPCA 33 - 54

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a request by the applicant to reduce the minimum side yard
setback from 15m permitted to 3.0m proposed for a horse barn designed with
6 horse stalls, and a confined livestock fenced outdoor area to 0m to property
line.

7. Reminders

8. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11066 
 

Official Community Plan Amendment No. OCP14-0026 – 
GolfBC Holdings Inc., Inc. No. 639821 

4360-4390 Gallaghers Drive E 

 
A bylaw to amend the "Kelowna 2030 – Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. THAT Map 4.1 - GENERALIZED FUTURE LAND USE of “Kelowna 2030 – Official 

Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500” be amended by changing the Generalized Future 
Land Use designation of a portion of Lot C and an Undivided 1/6 Share in Lot G, 
Section 2, Township 26, ODYD, Plan KAP53116 (see plan as to limited access), located 
on Gallaghers Drive E, Kelowna, B.C., from the  COMM - Commercial designation to the 
REC – Private Recreation and S2RES – Single/Two Unit Residentials designations as per 
Map “A” attached to and forming part of this bylaw; 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 9th day of March, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the  
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this  
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

 
City Clerk

 
  

7



 
 

 
 

 

8



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11067 
Z14-0058 – Jesse East  

3528 Landie Road 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot C, District Lot 134, ODYD, Plan 31819, located on Landie Road, 
Kelowna, B.C., from the RU1 – Large Lot Housing zone to the RU2 – Medium Lot 
Housing zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 9th day of March, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

9



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11068 
Z15-0001 – Shane Jones  
4962 Lakeshore Road 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 3, Section 26, Township 28, SDYD, Plan 4493, Except Plan 13503, 
located on Lakeshore Road, Kelowna, B.C., from the RR2 – Rural Residential 2 zone to 
the RR2c – Rural Residential 2 with Carriage House zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 9th day of March, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

10



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11069 
 
 

Discharge of a Portion of Land Use Contract  
LUC76-1114 - (M46624)  

1890 Baron Road 
 
 
WHEREAS a land use (the “Land Use Contract”) is registered at the Kamloops Land 
Title Office under number M46624 against lands in the City of Kelowna particularly 
known and described as a portion of Lot A, District Lot 125, ODYD, Plan KAP64377 (the 
“Lands”), located at 1890 Baron Road, Kelowna, B.C., as per Map “A” attached to and 
forming part of this bylaw; 
 
WHEREAS Section 930 of the Local Government Act provides that a land use contract 
that is registered in a Land Title Office may be discharged in the manner specified in the 
Land Use Contract, by bylaw following a public hearing on the proposed bylaw; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting 
assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Portion of Land Use Contract 

LUC76-1114 Discharge Bylaw”. 
 
2. The Land Use Contract is hereby cancelled on the portion of land identified on 

Map “A” and of no further force and effect and the City of Kelowna is hereby 
authorized and empowered to apply for the discharge of the Land Use Contract 
from the Lands. 

 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 16th day of March, 2015. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the  
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council on the  
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this  
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

  

11



 

12



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 3/3/2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Community Planning & Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: DVP15-0010 Owner: Michael A. & Laurie A. Koss 

Address: 403 Eldorado Rd. Applicant: 
Kevin Lee Mullins (Mullins 
Drafting and Design) 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Single / Two Unit Residential (S2RES) 

Existing Zone: RU1 – Large Lot Residential 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0010, for Lot 
12, DL 167, O.DY.D., Plan 1990, located on 403 Eldorado Road, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 13.1.6 (d) RU1 Development Regulations 

To vary flanking sideyard setback from 4.5m required to 2.5m proposed 

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit be valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval, with no opportunity for extension. 

2.0 Purpose  

To seek a Development Variance Permit to reduce the flanking side yard setback.  

3.0 Urban Planning  

The Urban Planning Department supports the requested variance.  The subject property has the 
last original  dwelling in the area that is pending redevelopment.  The neighbourhood has been 
built up with newer estate style housing, and this is the last lot to redevelop.  The portion of 
Eldorado Road that forms the flanking side yard to the site is encumbered with City utility 
infrastructure, and provides limited access to the lake beyond. 

The site development plan indicates that the garage portion of the proposed dwelling is located 
beyond the minimum 6.0m setback, so there will be adequate area to maneuver and park 
vehicles without impacting the road frontage. 

13



DVP15-0010 – Page 2 

 
 

The applicant has contacted the adjacent property owners to provide information and to advise 
them of the pending application for a siting variance.  This meets the requirements of Council 
Policy #367 – Public Notification and Consultation for Development Applications. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject property was originally registered in 1925.  The property currently has an older 
single storey dwelling and a free-standing garage structure located on the site. 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to construct a new, two storey dwelling with attached garage on the 
subject property.  However, owing to the location of the lot at the corner of Eldorado Road and 
Eldorado Court, the property has to be considered as a corner lot, which requires the dwelling to 
be sited a minimum of 4.5m to both of the road frontages. 

The applicant is seeking a variance to the flanking side yard setback from Eldorado Road 
frontage, from 4.5m required to 2.5m proposed, as this portion of the road is not a through road 
owing to the location of the City utility infrastructure located at the end of Eldorado Road.  

The proposed location of the dwelling will not impact the Okanagan Lake Sight Lines regulation, 
as the neighbouring property to the south does not have a dwelling constructed upon it, only an 
accessory building use as a greenhouse, in association with the neighbouring property at 4514 
Eldorado Court. 

4.3 Site Context 

Subject Property Map:      403 Eldorado Road 
 

 
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Pump House and Lift Station 

14



DVP15-0010 – Page 3 

 
 

The subject property is located at the end of Eldorado Road, adjacent to Eldorado Court, in the 
North Okanagan Mission sector of the City.  The neighbourhood is developed with large lot, estate 
style dwellings.  There is a water intake and pump house, as well as a sewer lift station located 
within the Eldorado Road right of way, to the north-east of the property. 

 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

Northwest W1 – Recreational Water Use  Okanagan Lake 

Northeast RU1 – Large Lot Housing Eldorado Road/Pump House/Lift Sta. 

Southwest RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Unit Housing 

Southeast RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Unit Housing 

4.4 Zone Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU1 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 
Lot Area 550m2 1139m2 

Lot Width 17.0m 18.6m 

Lot Depth 30.0m 64.4m 

Development Regulations 

Front Yard 
4.5m to dwelling 

6.0m to garage or carport 
4.5m to dwelling 

6.0m to garage or carport 

Flanking Side Yard (north-east) 
4.5m to dwelling 

6.0m to garage or carport 
2.5m to dwelling  

9.0m to garage or carport 

Side Yard (south-west) 
2.0m 1 or 1½ storey 
2.3m 2 or 2½ storey 

2.0m 1 or 1½ storey 
2.3m 2 or 2½ storey 

Rear Yard (Okanagan lake) 
7.5m 

15m from HWM 
7.5m 

19m from HWM 

 Indicates a requested variance to flanking side yard from 4.5m required to 2.5m proposed  

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Sensitive Infill.1 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height, and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

DVP does not compromise any municipal services 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

15



DVP15-0010 – Page 4 

 
 

6.3 Fire Department 

The Fire Department has no concerns with the variance. 

7.0 Application Chronology 

Date of Application Received: January 13, 2015  
 
Neighbourhood consultation;  March 3, 2015 

Report prepared by: 

 

     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 

 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Conceptual Elevations 
Context/Site Photos 
 
 

16



17



18



19



20



21



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: March 3, 2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (TY) 

Application: DVP15-0029 Owner: 
Sole on St Paul 
Developments LTD 

Address: 1290 St Paul Street Applicant: Thomas Scott (Signcraft LTD) 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: MXR – Mixed Use Residential / Commercial 

Existing Zone: C7 – Central Business Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0029 for Lot A, 
District Lot 139 ODYD Plan KAP91449, located on 1290 St. Paul Street, Kelowna, BC; 

AND THAT variances to the following sections of Sign Bylaw No. 8235 be granted: 

Section 5.5.3 

To vary the maximum height of a fascia sign from 1.0 m above the second storey to up to 
3.5 m above the second storey.  

Section 6.1 

Major Commercial (C3, C4, C6, C7, C8, CD22 Sub-Areas A&B and CD24 Sub Area A) 

To vary the number of fascia signs allowed per business frontage from 2 permitted to 6 
proposed. 

To vary the number of identification signs allowed per building face from 1 permitted to 2 
proposed.  

AND FURTHER THAT this Development Variance Permit is valid for two (2) years from the date of 
Council approval, with no opportunity to extend. 

2.0 Purpose  

To seek a Development Variance Permit for fascia signs on a new building.   

3.0 Urban Planning  

22



DVP15-0029 – Page 2 

 
 

Staff support the proposed variance. The existing six storey building has a mix of commercial and 
residential tenants and the visual impact would be minimal from pedestrian and vehicle traffic 
based on the photos taken from the street. The proposed sign locations are directly related to 
each commercial space they represent on the first three storeys of the building frontage. 
Proposed materials and colours of each sign compliment the new building’s exterior. Light 
fixtures that will highlight the proposed signs are minimal and direct light vertically up and down 
the building exterior, avoiding spilling on to the street or neighbouring properties.  

The overall sign designs including size, siting and materials meets the intent of the Revitalization 
Design Guidelines in the City of Kelowna Official Community Plan.  

In accordance with Council Policy 367 – Public Notification & Consultation for Development 
Applications, the applicant has provided notification of the Development Variance Permit 
application to neighbouring properties within 50m of the subject site. To date, City Staff has not 
been contacted with any objections or concerns with the proposed sign variance.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The building has commercial space on the first three floors with residential on the top three 
floors. The proposed six fascia signs are to be located on the business frontages on the first three 
floors. The letters and logos are in the form of a composite aluminum panels named Alupanel. 
The subject property is in a Revitalization area, and the building design has an industrial feel 
that speaks to the uses traditionally found in the area.  

The following chart highlights the proposed sign variances 

Sign Type SECTION 5 – Specific Regulations Proposal 

Fascia 5.5.3 (b) the sign, in the form of individual 
letters, symbols or logos is directly 
attached to or inscribed on the building 
face; 

 

Allow the sign in the form of 
individual letters, symbols or 
logos to be attached to a 
composite aluminum panel 
attached on the building face; 

Sign Type Section 6 – Specific Zone Regulations Proposal 

Fascia 2 per business frontage Allow 6 total 

Identification 1 per business Allow 2 total 

 

All of the proposed signs are located on the east facade of the building. Two fascia signs will be 
located on each storey for the first three storeys. Each proposed fascia sign consists of a 600 mm 
x 3,350 mm painted grey aluminum background panel. This panel protrudes 50 mm from the 
exterior of the building. Lettering making up a business name and logo will be cut from 
“Alupanel”, painted in the colours shown on the attached Building Elevation will be attached to 
the background panel. There are two identification signs, each in the form of individual letters or 
symbols cut from “Alupanel” attached directly to the building. One identification sign (775 mm x 
1,668) is centred on the second floor facade, the second identification sign (70 mm x 610 mm) is 
centred on the third floor facade.  

4.2 Site Context 

23



DVP15-0029 – Page 3 

 
 

The subject property is located on the west side of St. Paul Street, between Cawston Avenue and 
Clement Avenue. On this block, the west side of St. Paul Street is zoned commercial and 
industrial, and the east side is zoned residential. Future Land Use of west side of St. Paul Street 
is Mixed Use (Residential / Commercial).  

  

Adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North I2  Yoga Instruction & Office 

East RU2 Single Family Residential 

South C2 Offices 

West C7 Mixed use commercial & residential 

 

Subject Property Map: 1290 St Paul Street 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Urban Design Development Permit Areas (Chapter 14) – Revitalization Design Guidelines1 

Signage.  

 Design signage that is high quality, imaginative, and innovative; 

 Design signage with consideration of the size of any individual sign as part of the overall 
scheme of the building signage an the appearance of the building’s facade. Scale and 
architectural expression should not be compromised by size and number of signs; 

 Box signs are strongly discouraged; 

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 7.0(Urban Design Development Permits Areas Chapter). 

CLEMENT AVE 

CAWSTON AVE 

ST
 P

A
U

L 
ST

 

24



DVP15-0029 – Page 4 

 
 

 Incorporate concise messaging and simple graphics into signage. Corporate and store logos 
are appropriate only if they form a part of an overall sign design, and are suitably scaled 
to the facade composition; 

 Minimize signage lighting (incorporate indirect front-lit signs wherever possible); 

 

6.0 Technical Comments  

6.1 Development Engineering Department 

See attached memorandum dated February 16, 2015 

 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:  February 12, 2015  
Date Public Consultation Completed: March 2, 2015  
 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Tracey Yuzik, Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map  
Building Elevation & Sign Details 
Development Engineering Memorandum  
Draft Development Variance Permit DVP15-0029 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 3/9/2015 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS) 

Application: DVP15-0040 Owner: The BC SPCA 

Address: 3785 Casorso Rd Applicant: Edgecombe Builders 

Subject: Development Variance Permit – Side Yard Setback 

Existing OCP Designation: REP – Resource Protection Area 

Existing Zone: A1 – Agriculture 1 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP15-0040, for a 
variance for Lot 11 Block 1 District Lot 133 ODYD Plan 515 located at 3785 Casorso Rd, 
Kelowna, BC, as shown in  Schedule ‘A’;  
 
AND THAT Council considers the neighbourhood consultation process outlined in the Staff 
Report dated March 9, 2015 to be appropriate consultation for the purpose of Section 879 of the 
Local Government Act; 

 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:  
 
Section 11.1.6 (f) A1- Agriculture 1 (Development Regulations)  
 
To vary the site side yard from 15 m permitted to 3.0 m proposed for a building housing more 
than 4 animals, and a confined livestock fenced outdoor area to 0 m to property line. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a request by the applicant to reduce the minimum side yard setback from 15 m 
permitted to 3.0 m proposed for a horse barn designed with 6 horse stalls, and a confined 
livestock fenced outdoor area to 0 m to property line. 

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment (SAE) Services  

The variance is considered in the context that the building includes a concrete block wall facing 
the west property line. In addition, there is a 3.9 m internal alley way designed to transport the 
horses to separating the stalls and the west property line. There are currently no residences 
within 100 metres. The nearest building is 68 metres away and is an agricultural accessory 

33



DVP15-0040 – Page 2 

 
 

building. The owner of this property has indicated their support during neighbourhood 
consultation. 

The Zoning Bylaw setback specifies the 15 metre setback when more than 4 animals are 
housed. In this case, 6 stalls are proposed. Staff considers that the intention for this structure is 
not full time horse boarding, but for rescuing animals and providing temporary shelter until 
adoptions can be made. In consideration of the temporary nature of the confined area, and of 
the physical separation provided by the concrete block wall and the alleyway, staff supports 
this variance. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The BC Society for the Prevention of Cruelty for Animals (SPCA) wishes to construct a horse 
barn to shelter rescued horses on a temporary basis. This has been identified as a need 
following horse rescues in the last several years.  

4.2 Project Description 

The proposed horse barn has six stalls proposed (see attached). It is located on the western half 
of the SPCA property.  

The applicant is seeking a variance to the permitted 15 m side yard setback to a proposed 3 m. 
The horse barn has been designed in a linear alignment, in order to fit between the existing 
septic field and the property line.  

 

 

34



DVP15-0040 – Page 3 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Figure 1 – Site Plan 
 

 

A 3.9 m alley way will be in 
between the horse stalls and the 
concrete block wall 

 

 
Building is proposed to be 3.0 m 
from the property line 

 

A concrete block wall will face the 
west property line 
 

Figure 2 – Site Plan Detail 
 
 

Six horse stalls proposed 
 

Outdoor Enclosure Area 
 

35



DVP15-0040 – Page 4 

 
 

4.3 Site Context 

The site is located in the South Pandosy – KLO Sector of the City, along Casorso Road just west 
of  the Benvoulin / Swamp / Casorso Road traffic circle.  The property is in the Resource 
Protection Area, surrounded by properties in the Resource Protection Area. 

Zoning of the property is A1 – Agriculture 1, surrounded by properties of the same zoning 
designation. 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North A1 – Agriculture 1 (ALR) Agriculture (hay field) 

East A1 – Agriculture 1 (ALR) Rural Residential 

South A1 – Agriculture 1 (ALR) Agriculture / Farm Sales 

West A1 – Agriculture 1 (ALR) Agriculture (hay field) 

 

  

36



DVP15-0040 – Page 5 

 
 

Map 1. Subject Area 

 
 
Map 2. Neighbourhood Consultation 

 
  

Benvoulin 

Road 

SPCA - 

Subject 

Property 

Casorso 

Road 

Benvoulin 

Road 

SPCA - 

Subject 

Property 

Consulted 

with 

Owner 

Provided 

Package 

37



DVP15-0040 – Page 6 

 
 

Map 3. Agricultural Land Reserve 

 
 

4.4 Zoning Analysis 

A comparison of required and proposed zoning regulations is shown in the table below. 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

A1 – Agriculture 1 
PROPOSAL 

Development Regulations 
Side Yard – for structure 

harbouring less than 4 horses 
3.0 m N/A 

Side Yard – for structure 
harbouring less than 4 horses 

15.0 m 3.0 m  

 Indicates a requested variance 

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, Section 11.1.6  specifies a minimum distance to property line for 
confined livestock areas and / or buildings housing more than 4 animals. 

5.0 Neighbourhood Consultation 

The SPCA met directly with the most effective neighbor to the west. The neighbor indicated 
full support for the variance (see attached). An information package was provided to the 
neighbour to the east. No residences are present on the property to the north, and a road 
reserve is present to the northeast. There are no residences within 100 metres of the proposed 
horse barn. 

  

Benvoulin 

Road 

SPCA - 

Subject 

Property 

Casorso 

Road 

ALR 

(Typical) 

38



DVP15-0040 – Page 7 

 
 

6.0 Policies 

6.1 Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 

Section 11.1.6 of the Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 states: 

(f) Notwithstanding subsections 11.1.6(c) to (e), confined livestock areas and/or buildings 
housing more than 4 animals, or used for the processing of animal products or for agricultural 
and garden stands, shall not be located any closer than 15.0 m from any lot line, except where 
the lot line borders a residential zone, in which case the area, building or stand shall not be 
located any closer than 30.0 m from the lot line. 

6.2 Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation1 

Horse boarding is considered a farm use according to the ALR Regulation: 

(2) The following activities are designated as farm use for the purposes of the Act and may be 
regulated but must not be prohibited by any local government bylaw except a bylaw 
under section 917 of the Local Government Act or, if the activity is undertaken on 
treaty settlement lands, by a law of the applicable treaty first nation government... 

(h) horse riding, training and boarding, including a facility for horse riding, training and 
boarding, if 

(i)   the stables do not have more than 40 permanent stalls 

7.0 Technical Comments  

7.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No Comment. 

8.0 Application Chronology  

 Date of Application Received: February 23, 2015  
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Approved for Inclusion:   Shelley Gambacort, Director  
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Department 

Attachments:  

Subject Property Map 

Public Notification Letter (March 2, 2015) 
Horse Barn Plans 
Conceptual Isometric 
Neighbourhood Consultation Form 

                                                      
1
 BC Statutes, Sept. 5, 2014. Agricultural Land Reserve Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation. 

http://www.bclaws.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/171_2002#part2 

 

39

http://www.bclaws.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/96323_00
http://www.bclaws.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/171_2002#part2


40



41



42



43



SCHEDULE 'A;

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Variance Permit No.:  DVP15-0040 

 

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 

 

A1 – Agriculture 1 

To vary the site side yard from 15 m permitted to 3.0 m proposed for a 
building housing more than 4 animals, and a confined livestock fenced 
outdoor area to 0 m to property line.  

 

 
ISSUED TO:         Edgecombe Builders (Edgecombe Enterprises Ltd.) 
  

  LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:   3785 Casorso Rd 
 

 

 LOT SECTIONS D.L. TOWNSHIP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

11 
Block 1 

  133  ODYD 515 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for a Development Permit and/or Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a 
Permit limits the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control 
Bylaw unless specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions 
shall be granted by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have 
been identified as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 
 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:  
 
Section 11.1.6 (f) A1- Agriculture 1 (Development Regulations)  
 
To vary the site side yard from 15 m permitted to 3.0 m proposed for a building housing more than 4 animals, and 
a confined livestock fenced outdoor area to 0 m to property line. 
 
THAT the building be constructed in accordance with ‘Schedule A’. 

 
 
2. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and provisions 

of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part hereof. 
 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of this 

Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
 

52



- 2 - 
  DVP15-0040 
 
 This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality. The authorization to transfer the 

Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 

3.  PERFORMANCE SECURITY: 
 
 As a condition of the issuance of this Permit, Council is holding the security set out below to ensure that 

development is carried out in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Permit.  Should any interest be 
earned upon the security, it shall accrue to the Permittee and be paid to the Permittee if the security is returned.  
The condition of the posting of the security is that should the Permittee fail to carry out the development hereby 
authorized, according to the terms and conditions of this Permit within the time provided, the Municipality may use 
the security to carry out the work by its servants, agents or contractors, and any surplus shall be paid over to the 
Permittee, or should the Permittee carry out the development Permitted by this Permit within the time set out 
above, the security shall be returned to the Permittee.  There is filed accordingly: 

 
 (a) Cash in the amount of $        N/A                . 
 (b) A Certified Cheque in the amount of N/A 
 (c) An Irrevocable Letter of Credit in the amount of N/A      
 
 Before any bond or security required under this Permit is reduced or released, the Developer will provide the City 

with a statutory declaration certifying that all labour, material, workers' compensation and other taxes and costs 
have been paid. 

 
4. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in support 

of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the Permit for me by 
the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually indemnify the 
Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property owned 
in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, directly or 
indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, the 

Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any building or 
part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works or other works 
called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and Director of 
Community Planning & Real Estate Services. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Urban 
Planning Departmant immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 

53



- 3 - 
  DVP15-0040 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
 
5. APPROVALS: 
 

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE ___ DAY OF  March,                         
2015. 
 

ISSUED BY THE SUBDIVISION, AGRICULTURE & ENVIRONMENT DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF 

KELOWNA THE ___ DAY OF March, 2015 BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL ESTATE 

SERVICES. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
 
Doug Gilchrist 
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate Services 
 
 
 
 
Attachment – Schedule ‘A’ 

54


	Agenda
	3. Draft Minutes - March 17 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - March 17 Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 BL11066 OCP14-0026 4360-4390 Gallagerhs Dr E.pdf
	4.2 BL11067 Z14-0058 3528 Landie Road.pdf
	4.3 BL11068 Z15-0001 4962 Lakeshore Road.pdf
	4.4 BL11069 LUC15-0001 1890 Baron Road.pdf
	6.1 Eldorado Rd 403 Report DVP15-0010.pdf
	6.1 Eldorado Rd 403 Attachments DVP15-0010.pdf
	6.2 St Paul St 1290 Report DVP15-0029(2).pdf
	6.2 St Paul St 1290 Attachments DVP15-0029.pdf
	6.3 Report DVP15-0040 Casorso Rd 3785.pdf
	6.3 Casorso Rd 3785 Attachments DVP15-0040.pdf
	6.3 DVP15-0040 Variance Permit.pdf

